
14 Economic and Social Council - Second Kegular Session, 1982 

32nd meeting 
Thursday, 8 July 1982, at 3.20 p.m. 

President: Mr. Miljan KOMATINA (Yugoslavia) 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

General discussion of international economic and social 
policy, including regional and sectoral developments 
(continued) 

l. The PRESIDENT drew attention to the document 
made available by the Algerian delegation, entitled 
" Initiative d'Alger pour Ia democratisation des relations 
internationa/es" (Algiers initiative for the democrat­
ization of international relations). As a product of the 
de liberations of some outstanding personalities in world 
economics. it contained a number of e lements of interest 
in connection with the current debate. 
2. Mr. YOLAH (Under-Secretary-General for Inter­
national Economic and Social Affairs) said that the 
present crisis in the world economy was even worse than it 
had been when the World Economic Survey 1981-1982 
had been completed in March 1982. The United Kingdom 
representative had questioned the frequent use of the 
word ·'crisis'' in the Survey and other United Nations 
documents, but. from the viewpoint of the majority of the 
world's inhabitants, it was e ntirely appropriate; the world 
was at a turning-point and must inevitably change. either 
for better or for worse. Persistent recession in the 
developed market-economy countries had affected the 
export earnings of many developing countries. which had 
been forced to reduce their rates of economic growth still 
further. Many of them , both importers and exporters of 
energy. had been obliged to cut back their imports and 
postpone or abandon important investment projects. 
Economic uncertainties had further diminished the ability 

E/1982/SR.32 

of most developing countries to guide their economies in a 
planned way. It now appeared that the recovery predicted 
for the second half of 1982 would be difficult to attain and 
per capita incomes might continue to fall in many 
developing countries. 
3. In the developed market economies, the modest 
recovery predicted for the secoond half of 1982 was 
beginning to seem less probable. The forecast fo r the 
developed countries had been dependent on a recovery in 
the United States of America and a lowering of interest 
rates by several percentage points. Most indicators. 
however. did not suggest any firm recovery in the United 
States before the end of the year. and, although progress 
had been made in a number of countries. including the 
United States, in reducing inflation, interest rates 
remained high and continued to slow down investment. 
4. Among the main issues discussed in the Survey were 
the need to reduce uncertainty, through the co-ordination 
of economic policies among the major indu!>1rialized 
countries , the strengthening of international co-operation 
and the maintenance of an open trading system. At the 
recent Versailles summit meeting, the major industrial­
ized countries had agreed to co-ordinate their policies 
more effectively, with a view to reactivating economic 
growth and reducing infiation. Unfortunately, domestic 
problems in some of those countries were leading them 
away from efforts to strengthen international co­
operation. In many countries, official development 
assistance had been cut back, and there were also 
indications of increasing protectionism to sustain 
employment and output in declining sectors. If those 
tendencies were to increase, the prospects for world 



32nd ml't'tlnl( - 8 July 1982 15 

economic recovery, and particularly for a resumption of 
growth in the devdoping countries. would become even 
dimmer. 

5. There was. therefore. an urgent need to strengthen 
the multilateral trading sy!.tem and international financial 
co-operation. The ministerial meeting of GAIT in 
November 1982 would offer an opportunity to support the 
acceptance o f a more open trading system by taking 
specific action. 

6. A review of the world economv must not. of course. 
be restricted to the current situation: the examination of 
long-term tre nds was of crucial importance. Although 
the re were drawbacks in trying to predict the future on the 
ba!.is o f present a nd past trends. it was neverthe less useful 
to e xamine various possibilit ies . In response to Gene ral 
Assembly resolution 34/57 and Economic and Social 
Counci l decisions 19RO/ l90 a nd 1981/200, the Secretary­
General. through the Department of International 
Eco no mic and Social Affairs. in co-operation with all the 
regional commissions and specialized agcncie~ of the 
United Nations system. had prepared a report concern ing 
a n overall socio-economic perspective of the world 
economy to the ye.<r 2000 (A/37 (211 and Corr. I). 

7. The report began with projections of potential 
growth based on the assumption that recent trends. and 
particularly the policies of the developed economies. 
would continue. which it called .. A low world-growth 
scenario ... In the absence of new measures to stimulate 
the world economy. overall economic growth for all 
groups of countries was expected to be much less than in 
the previo us decade. and the projected growth of the 
deve loping countries in particular was likely to be highly 
unsatisfactory. 

8 . T he internatio nal community had long recognized 
the need for faster growth in the developing countries. 
T he report o n long-te rm trends re ite rated the targets 
unanimously set in the International Development 
Strategy for the lltird United Nations Development 
Decade and reaffirmed the measures that needed to be 
taken in order to fu lfi l them . 

9 . An aggregative approach to the economic situation of 
developing countries presented certain advantages; 
common problems could be analysed. common obstacle!> 
to growth recognized and common policies identifi ed . It 
would not, however, bring out tht: diverse economic 
problems particular to each region. to which therefore 
specific attention was given in the report. 
10. The report dealt with some of the social dimensions 
of development , such as income distribution. primary 
ed ucatio n and primary health care. It howed that . even if 
the expansion envisaged hy the St rategy were to be 
achieved, the poverty of millions of people would not be 
alleviated by the year 2000 unless specific policies aimed 
at improving the conditions of the neediest were actively 
pursued. 

11. Lastly. some of the most critical problems facing the 
developing countries were d iscussed in the report: the 
population explosion. food supply and agricultural 
modernization and expansio n. human settlements. 

industrialization and technology. trade. mone) and 
fi nance. d isarmame nt and defence requireme nts. 
together with energy and all the related issue!'>. Unless 
intensified e fforts were made to deal with those;: pr,)bfems. 
it would be difficult to achieve the goals of the Strategy . 
12. An important feature of the l nternati~ma l 
Developme nt Strategy was international monetar)- and 
fina ncial co-operation. to which the Comm1ttee for 
Development Planning had devoted much of It!> n.:port 
(E/1981/15 and Corr.l and 2). The Chairman of the 
Committee would introduce that report to the C'ounc1l. 
13. T he Council also had before it for con~ideration 
unde r agenda item 3 the report of the ACC'Task Force on 
Long-Term Development Objectives (E / 19R2/74 ). which 
confirmed the unfavourable situation of the world 
economy and the need to restore growth. 
14. With respect to agenda item H (Convening of an 
In te rnational Conference on Population in 19R4). he said 
that, since the last World Population Conference in 1974. 
the prohlem had become more urgent and w mplcx. 
Although the re had been some improve me nts a t the 
global level. at the regional and country le,·els many 
population trends were significantly at variance with the 
goals of the:! World Population Plan of Action . The 
C onferencc would d iscuss selected issue'> of first prio rity. 
giving full attention to the re lationship between popu­
lation and social and economic deve lopment. The 
discussions would contribute to the process of review nnd 
appraisal of the Plan of Action and its furthe r implemen­
ta tio n. Preparations for the Conference were already 
underway. 
15. On agenda item 10 (Public aumimstration and 
finance matters). he ~aid that· the report hcfore the 
Council o n international co-operation in tax matters 
(E/ 1982171) outlined the history of the propo~almadc.:: by 
the forme r Group of Experts on Tax Treaties hctwcen 
Developed and Developing Countries for the creation of 
an international forum for the d1scussion l)f taxation 
1ssues and the sharing of technical experience in the tax 
field . T he successor to the Group. the Ad Hoc Group of 
Expe rts on International Co-operation in Tax Matters. 
had reviewed the feasibility and the substantive aspect~ of 
the proposal at its first meeting in Decembe r 1981. In v1ew 
of the many institutio nal and fmancia l implicatio ns of the 
Group's proposals, it was recommended that the con­
sideration of them should be defe rred until its work on 
international tax evasion and tax avo ida nce had been 
completed . At that time. an appropriate course of action 
would he recommended to the Coum:il. 
16. The Council a lso had before it in connection with 
item lO a report outlining the policy recomme ndations 
made by the Second International Symposium on the 
Mobilization of Personal Savings in Developing 
Countries. held at Kuala Lumpur. Malaysia. in March 
191:12 (E/ 19X2/66). The Symposium wa!o one of a !.enes of 
three. whose reports would be very useful to policy 
maker~ concerned with development financing and to 
savings and credit officials in developing countries. A 
third Symposium was planned for 1 9~. Both the repo rts 
he had referred to reflected the continuing efforts of the 



Economic and 

United Nations to develop policy guidelines that would 
help developing countries to generate more financial 
resources for development and at the same time increase 
their financial self-reliance. 
17. The process of defining the role of the United 
Nc.tions in providing the necessary forum where nations 
co·Jid identify their common concerns and seek mutually 
acceptable solutions to common problems was still 
continuing. Serious and informed debate on the issues 
involved demanded balanced research and analysis, 
based not only on accurate figures but on a truly global 
viewpoint. The United Nations, because of its member­
ship and its mandate under the Charter of the United 
Nations, was in an appropriate position to perform the 
necessary tasks, in order to achieve both economic 
recovery on the short run and a more balanced and stable 
international economic order in the long run. 
lK Mr. LOEFF (European Economic Community) 
said that 1981 had not been a good year for the European 
Economic Community. For the first time since 1975. there 
had been a decline in economic activity. The prolongation 
of recession in 1981 had been connected in particular with 
the rapid appreciation of the dollar and the rise in world 
interest rates. The deficit in the balance of payments had 
remained at the 1980 level. At the same time, unemploy­
ment had reached an unprecedented 9 per cent, the 
highest level of the post-war period. 

19. He did not wish, however. to over-dramatize the 
difficulties with which the Community was faced. Other 
countries were suffering still more from the world 
ec::momic crisis. What was important was to face tho<>e 
difficulties with resolution and a determination not to 
jeopardize international co-operation. Growth would not 
re:;ume of its own accord: it required an active policy of 
encouraging investment and employment. Only a signifi­
cant resumption of investment would bring about the 
conditions needed for the creation of jobs. technological 
innovation and improved competitiveness. Investment in 
energy was particularly important and the Community 
could provide the necessary impetus in that regard and 
help to co-ordinate national policies. 
20. Better co-ordination wao; also necessary for general 
economic performance. The fight against inflation 
demanded that the divergences between the rates of 
inflation of Community member States should be 
reduced. That should be accompanied by a reduction in 
the differences in budgetary deficits. At the same time, in 
an international mon.::tary context marked by in~tahility. 
the Community would have to make an effort to 
strengthen the European mont:tary system and increase 
its internal cohesivenes~. Such an dfort should be 
accompanied by improved international monetary co­
operation. partit:ularly in respect of movements of rates 
of exchange and interest rates. 
21. Trade was another major field of international 
co-operation. The Community was committed to the 
mamtenance of an open trading :;,yo:;tem and strict respect 
for international rules and procedures. The so-called 
··wave of protectionism" was perhaps exaggerated, 
although pressures were rising. As the ministers of the 

OECD countries had noted in May 1982. the inter­
national trading system had stood up reasonably well. An 
expansion of world trade was in the interest of all 
countries, both North and South. The stagnation of world 
trade in 19S 1 was a source of genuine anxiety to the entire 
international community. The Community, for its part, 
undertook to participate in a positive spirit in the new 
efforts to be undertaken within the framework of GA TI, 
on the understanding that it was also important to ensure 
that the results of past negotiations were put into effect. 

22. The European Economic Community was the 
developing countries' main trading partner. Under the 
Lome Convention. the preferential agreements with the 
Mediterranean countries and the generalized system of 
preferences, most developing country exports enjoyed 
free or preferential access to the Community market. 
Total imports from the developing countries had risen in 
1981 to about $143 billion, while Community exports had 
amounted to $120 billion. The Community was well 
aware that, for the past ;;,ix or seven years, the main 
impetus behind world trade had been the growth of 
developing-country markets; in 1980. those markets had 
taken about 46 per cent of Community exports. if 
southern Europe was included (and more than 37 per cent 
excluding southern Europe). It was in the Community's 
interest that the impetus should not slacken. Thus. the 
developing countries were to a varying extent be('oming 
increasingly important partners in international trade and 
their continuing integration within the trading system 
seemed a foregone conclusion. The multilateral system. 
therefore, was the most appropriate framework within 
which to examine the matters of particular concern to 
them. 

23. Turning to particular aspects of international trade 
relations. he noted that at the end of 198! the Arrange­
ment regarding International Trade in Textiles. known as 
the Multifibre ArrangemenL had been extended until 31 
July 1986. Although the Arrangement was not an end in 
itself. it offered, together with satisfactory bilateral 
agreements. a suitable framework for the orderly 
development of trade in a sector faced with difficulties 
and already subjected to drastic adjustments. Despite 
tho<;e problems, the Community had allowed some 45 per 
cent of its market for textiles and garments to be taken up 
by imports-a share well in excess of the level in other 
major importing countries. That fact should explain the 
importance the Community attached to some regulation 
of sharp or excessive rises in its imports. 

24. With regard to generalized preferences, the plan 
drawn up by the Community for 1982 was part of an 
overall plan for 1981-1985. In agriculture, the Community 
had concentrated on increasing the level of preferences, 
whilst expanding the list of commodities covered and 
extending particular measures in favour of the least 
developed countries. For industrial commodities. the 
preferential amounts had in general been increased by 5 
w 15 per cent. except m some highly :-ensitive <>ectors. The 
new scheme applied since 1980 was clearly more liberal in 
relation to the least developed countrie'> and had 
implications greater than the actual amounts involved 



32nd 

would suggest. In addition. China and Romania would 
now have the benefit of preferences. in certain commodi­
ties, which had not previously been the case. 

25. The commodity sector was still beset by problem~ 
which the various forms of international co-operation had 
only partly remedied. Price instability was a major worry 
for the developing countries. affecting their purchasing 
power and export earnings, and was a factor in the 
problem of indebtedness. Solutions had to be sought at 
the international level; despite the lack of progress so far, 
the Community supported the efforts being made in 
UNCT AD, including the Integrated Programme for 
Commodities. New commodity agreements should be 
drawn up to deal with specific problems whenever 
possible: the Agreement Establishing the Common Fund 
for Commodities, concluded in 1981, which had been 
signed by the European Economic Community and all its 
member States. would. it was hoped. become operational 
as soon as possible. 

26. Price stabilization was but one aspect of commodity 
problems. The Community was concerned at the lack of 
investment for natural resource development. which 
would be a kev to world economic recovery and the 
prosperity of the developing countries, particularly the 
least developed among them. and would lead naturally to 
the development of processing and exporting by tl10~e 
countrie~. 

27. As a result of the establishment of the ST ABEX 
system for the stabihzation of export receipts under the 
Lome Convention, the Community had acquired special 
experience in the field of e>.port earnings. The stabilizing 
of export earnings had been given particular attention at 
the United Nations Conference on the Lea:-.t Developed 
Countries. held in Paris in l9l:\ I. The financmg problems 
which hau ari~en recently had been chiefly due to the 
considerable fall in coffee. groundnut and cocoa price~. In 
addition, two countries partie-, to the Lome Convention 
had been hit by natural disasters. An exceptional effort 
had been agreed on to meet half of the tran~fcr relJUC~ts 
for which available re~ource<; had been insufficient. The 
difficulties encountered m applying the STABEX ~ystem 
were not structural 1n nature. but were due to the 
immediate economic situation. which \Vould be taken into 
account m establishing the new contractual relations to 
~uccced the current Com ention. The economic -,ituation 
had ;;everdv strained the operation of some commodity 
agreements, leadmg in <,omc cases to unilateral mea~ure~. 
Only strengthened international co-operation would 
make it pmsible to overcome '.uch difficultie~. 

:!H. The Commumt) and it" member States partiCipated 
in the International Coffee Agreement. 19711. and m the 
International Cocoa Agreement. !9XO, which had come 
into force m August 191-\1: they had also concluded the 
International Natural Rubber Agreement. 1979. and had 
provi~ionally '>igned the Sixth l~ternational Tin Agree­
ment. Con:..ultation~ 'v'ith a view to the conclu~1on of 
international agreement~ on cotton and hard fibre~ would 
continue. The Communitv wa<, also participating in 
negotiations for an mternational agreement on jute and 

would take part in those for an international agreement 
on tropical timber. Although the Community would not 
participate in the 1977 International Sugar Agreement 
directly, because of its shortcomings. it was trying to 
further its aims and would participate in future renegoti~ 
ations. It continued to hope for the conclusion of an 
international agreement on cereals; only such an agree­
ment, including economic clause~. would achieve the 
twofold aim of international market ~tability for cereal~ 
and food security for the developing countne~. 
29. In general. the problems caused by population 
growth. desertification and the risks of reduced food 
self-sufficiency could not be ignored. and at the end of 
1981 the Community. on the initiative of the Ita han 
Government. had e~tablishcd a plan of action against 
world famine. compnsmg both short-term measures and 
action aimed at structural causes. In the short term, the 
CommunitY. in addition to the normal a-.sistance pro­
gramme. had earmarked <,orne $44 million for the least 
developed countries, consi~ting partly of special food aid 
and partly of a ~upplementary contribution to the 
International Emcrgenc\· Food Reserve. which had now 
been able. for the~ fir~t time. to achieve its target of 
500,000 tonne~ of cereals. The Community's plan also 
provided for :,upport to developing countrie5 carrying nut 
national food strategic~; It had taken imtial steps \\ uh 
regard to several cou~tries and would expand its activities 
in the future. At the same time. regional action 'v'as bemg 
taken to protect and develop agricultural potential and to 
improve food security. In additHm, the Community wa:, 
studying the possibihty of applying a o;,pecial ~upple­
mentary programme in 19~2. 

30. The Community wa~ carrying out financial and 
technical assi~tance programmes. both under the Lome 
Convention and as part of co-operation agreements. 
There was al~o the regular food aid programme for 19~2. 
which at present envisaged deh\eries equivalent to $550 
million. a sizeable portion of which was earmarked for 
WFP. Assistance in cereals was concentrated on the 
poorest countrie~ and tho!>e with the worst cereal 
~hortages. The Community noted with intere~t the 
conclusion reached by the World Food Council. at its 
eighth mim:,terial '>C5sion in June 19~2. that con~ultations 
shoulu be undertaken among Gm ernment~. at the expert 
level. to exam me the pmpo-.al to set up a cereal reserve of 
~orne II million tonne<.. exclusively for the developing 
countrie~. 

31. One of the developing cnuntne~ · mo'St crucial 
problems wa-, that of finance-particularly for tho<,e 
which imported energy. although the relative easing of 
the ml market had reduced ten~ion somewhat. Their 
balance of paymenb also ~uffercd from the rece<,<.,IOn in 
the industrialized countrie'> and the need to import food. 
Thu~. both oftlcial and private as~istance not onlv 
remained cs-.ential but needed to he increased and 
5uitably co-ordmated. Official development assistance. in 
particular. wa~ e-;sential for the improvement of de\elop­
ment finance: member State), of the Community. de~pite 
current difficulties. still aimed at the target of 0. 7 per cent 
of GNP: they had !-.eta target of0.15 per cent of their GNP 



18 Council- Second 1982 

for the least developed countries. and some of them had 
already exceeded that target. 
32. Multilateral financing in general, and the financing 
of energy development in particular. called for particular 
attention. As a result of the stagnation in official aid. with 
a tendency to opt for bilateral channels and reduce 
contributions to multilateral agencies. the multilateral 
system was threatened with dangerous erosion. The plans 
for an energy affiliate of the World Bank seemed to be 
fading, and at the same timt~ IDA, the essential source of 
fin::m~e for the poorest countries, had been operating at a 
low rate for almost two years and its financing capability 
was liable to be cut by some 40 per cent between l'J81 and 
1984. The longer-term prospeds were no better: the 
World Bank would have to husband its resources so as to 
ensure that its capital was not used up too quickly: similar 
problems were to be foreseen regarding the Jevelopment 
bank capital. The international cummunity could not 
ignore such problems. The Community would give due 
attention to the concern expressed on the subject by the 
developing countries. particularly during the consulta­
tions held at New Ddhi in Febmary 1982. 
33. The European Economic Community also had 
<.pecific fund:, available for assistance in cases of 
emergency. Thu'>. it had earmarked some $25 million in 
liJ:i L under the Lome Convention. for a series of 
measures following political events or natural disasters in 
a number of countries. An equivalent amount nf 
assistance had also been given. through international and 
non-governmental organization:,, to non-associate 
countries. particularly in Asia. The year 1981 had been 
the sixth year of co-operation with non-governmental 
organizations. 

34. Turning to the work of the regional commis~ions, he 
noted that ECE had adopted a re'lolution which provided 
a constructive framework for its technical tasks in energy, 
the enviromnent, :.cience and technology. and other 
fields. 
35. The Community participated regularly in the work 
of ECW A. whose ninth se~sion had reflected the 
determination of its member States to continue their 
efforts, despite the problems prevalent in the region. By 
means of an exchange of letters in December 1981. the 
Community had established specific co-operation 
measure<:. with ECW A in spheres of jomt interest. 
36. The Community. on account of its many trade and 
other ties with ESCAP and its member countries. 
followed that Commis<,ion 's work with interest. Although 
the Community's trade deficit with Japan had increased 
further in 1981. that with the developing countries 
members of ESC AP had fallen sharply. 
37. The Community was still fimlly committed to 
friendly relations and co-operation with Latin America. 
ECLA had recently proposed to the Council of the 
Community special action to promote economic and 
social development in Central America-action which 
would include increased financial support aimed particu­
larly at improving agriculture and easing balance-of­
payments deficits. Preparations for a co-operation 
agreement between the Community and the Andean Pact 

countries were at present in suspense owing to present 
circumstances. but the Community was ready to resume 
negotiations as soon as the situation allowed. In general. 
the Community would continue to give specific support to 
the Latin American countries' efforts at regional and 
subregional integration and was ready to share its 
experience in ~uch matters. 
38. Unfortunately, the Euro-Arab dialogue had made 
no progress. and the meeting of ministers which had been 
envisaged for its resumption could not beheld as planned, 
on account of events in the Middle East. The Community 
continued to hope that Europe and the Arab world could 
establish a basis for a true rapprochement in a climate of 
trust. It had already e~tablished closer relations. as part of 
its undertaking to promote regional co-operation, with 
some Arab regional organizations, for example as a n:sult 
of the agreement signed in June 19~2 with the Council of 
Arab Economic Unity and the contacts with the Gulf 
Co-operation CounciL 
39. The Community had also continued it~ co-operation 
with ASEAN. A trade council had been e<;tablished and a 
programme of co-operation in science and technology 
had been developed. 
40. Tangible progress had been made in the relations 
betwet'n the Community and the developing countries of 
Asia. which were the major recipients of its financial and 
technical assistance to non-associate countries. A good 
start had been made in the implementation of the new 
co-operation agreement \Vith India. 
41. The Community "as particularly anxious to ensure 
that its relations with the countries of the Mediterranean 
basin developed harmonious!~ and in the interests of all 
parties. 
42. The third United Nation~ Conference on the Law of 
the Sea. some aspects of which directly affected the 
Community's interests, had been an important milestone 
in international co-operation and had resulted in a 
Convention of a scope unprecedented in United Nations 
history. 
43. With respect to the North-South dialogue. the 
global negotiations plan had suffered many setbacks since 
its first appearance some three years earlier. The 
Community had consistently supporteu the plan, since 
the proposed negotiations. if they were conducted in a 
spirit of solidarity on all ~ides, could m~hieve their 
purpose. They would not replace the work done by 
existing institutions. but could open the way to a new 
dimension of international co-operation. The 
Community therefore welcomed the recent conclusions 
reached at the summit meeting of industrialized countrie~ 
at Versailles. which had described the launching of global 
negotiations as a major political objective. On the 
constructive basis of the proposals of the Group of 77 and 
those of the industrialized countries, it should be possible 
to achieve the closer understanding that was essential for 
the opening of such negotiations. 

Mr. Kamanda wa Kamanda (Zaire), Vice-President, 
took the Chair. 
44. Mr. SALAS (Executive Director, United Nations 
Fund for Population Activities) said that his report on the 



state of world population, issued in June 19~Q, indicated a 
world population of A. t billion for the year 2000--a figure 
1.4 billion below that of 7.5 billion which would have been 
projected under the conditions of stable fertility and 
declining mortality prevailing in the 1950s. The difference 
had arisen because the birth rate in developing countries 
had been declining twice as fast as in the 1960s. owing 
partly to national population policies and programmes, 
changes in social and economic conditions and inter­
national population assistance. The United Nations now 
predicted that world population would be stabilized at 
10.5 billion in the year 2110. The largest decline in the 
birth rate had been in Asian countries. where the <,peed of 
decline had accelerated in the 1970s; a target of I per cent 
population growth rate in the year 20<Xl had been set. in 
October 1981. by the Asian Conference of Parliament­
arians on Population and Development. Birth rates had 
changed least in Africa; rates of 45 and above were still 
common. particularly in western and eastern Africa; of 50 
developing countries in Africa, 32 had Governments that 
had no policies for influencing their birth rates. 
45. The unprecedented growth in the 1950s and t 960s 
had pointed to the need to integrate population factors in 
development planning and had induced many Govern­
ments in the 1970s to revise their view that large 
population5 would not adversely affect future economic 
growth. Policies and programmes had been formulated 
not only for birth rates but in areas such as mortality and 
morbidity, spatial distribution and certain aspects of 
internal and international migration. By 1980, 59 
developing countries had had suitable programmes. as 
against 26 in 1969; another 21 countries now considered 
their fertility levels too high but had not yet chosen to 
adopt interventionist policies. The significance of the 
changed attitude could be grasped when the size of the 
population concerned was noted. Some 80 per cent of the 
developing world's population lived in countries which 
considered their fertility levels too high, but only 3 per 
cent lived in 21 countries where the Governments 
thought they were too low; the remaining 17 per cent lived 
in countries satisfied with their current fertility levels. 

46. The World Population Conference held in 1974 had 
fostered that change in outlook. and the World Popu­
lation Plan of Action had consolidated the objectives, 
actions and policies developed up to that time. The 
experience acquired since then augured well for 1984. 
when the next international conference on population 
would be held. 

47. Statements made during 1981 by many international 
leaders reflected the continued recognition of the import­
ance of population. The '>even major industrialized 
nations, at their summit meeting at Versailles in June 
1982. had noted, in a joint communique. their intention to 
give special encouragement to programmes dealing with 
the implications of population growth. Equally hearten­
ing was the increased contribution to UNFP A by many 
donors. despite current international economic con­
ditions. 
48. A shortage of resource>. persisted. however. at a 
time when the developing countries' demand for popu-

lation assistance was growing. The UNFPA programme. 
like that of all voluntary fund~. had been adverselv 
affected bv the decline in ·the value of manv convertibl~ 
currencies- compared to the United States dollar. which 
had reduced its 1981 income by a few millton dollars. The 
Governing Council of UNDP, at its twenty-eighth 
session. had given UNFPA approval authority amounting 
in total to $147 million for 1981. hut the shortfall in 
contributions had resulted in an income of $22 million 
less; as a result, many projects had had to be postponed or 
rephas.ed. Fortunately, the rephasing had been done in 
collaboration with the Governments and agencies con­
cerned, the Fund having remained financially sound. 
Moreover. national allocations for population pro­
grammes had been increa~ing considerably. E\ en 
countries initially dependent on external as-sistance for 
such activities had increased their comm1tment of internal 
resources. For each dollar budgeted by UNFPA dunng 
1979-1981. the countnes themsehes had budgeted $4.6-
a ratio influenced by the large-scale commitment of funds 
in 1980 by countries such as India and Mexico for their 
population project5. 

49. In June 1982, UNFPA had submitted to the 
Governing Council details of a review and reassessment 
of the entire UNFPA programme for 1982-198.5 (DP/ 
1982/28. DP/1982/30 and Add.1), including an extensive 
review of the system for determining priority status-a 
system which. approved by the Governing Council in 
1977. had been effective in directing efforts to project'> in 
40 "priority'· and 14 "borderline" countries. As a result of 
the review, proposed revi5ions had been submitted to the 
Governing Council; the revised list, based on a slight 
adjustment in the criteria and an upward adjustment in 
the threshold of the economic indicator, included 53 
priority countries: 30 in Sub-Saharan Afnca. 16 in Asia 
and the Pacific, 2 in Latin America and the Caribbean and 
5 in the Middle East and the :\1editerranean regions. 
Those countries, which in 1980 comprised roughly 75 per 
cent of the population of the developing countries. 
included 2S of the 31 least developed countries. The li!>t 
would serve to establish priorities in allocatmg 60 per cent 
of the resources of UNFPA. but its adoption did not 
preclude assistance to any other developing countries. 

50. As one outcome of the review. income projections 
for 1982-1985 had been revised down-wards, on the basis 
of the Governing Council'f> directives and the Fund's mvn 
conservative pr~oject1ons for 1982 and beyond. The 
revision took a realistic v1ew of current resource.., and 
\Vould enable UNFP A to programme without major 
readjustments. It was realized that developing countries 
needed a firm assistance commitment in order to rest 
ass.ured that project implementation would not be 
disrupted by the rephasing of funds. But it was abo 
realized that, despite continuing fund-raising efforts, 
income projections rmght not be fully met; to avoid 
disruptions, therefore. it wa<, intended to programme 
cautiouslv for each of the four vears !982-1985 at a level 
no higher than that of l9i:Q, cu"rrently estimated at $ 136 
million. Such conservative programming meant that 
programme allocations, once made, could remain firm: 



Economic and Social 

additional resources, if available, would be allocated 
primarily to new activities. 
51. The programme priorities set by the Goveming 
Council were: family planning. oriented towards the 
individual and family; population education, including 
family planning information; basic data collection; 
population dynamics; and policy formulation, imple­
mentation and evaluation. Those priorities would be 
applied by UNFPA in its next work-plan period from 19R3 
to 1986. 

52. He intended to discuss in the First (Economic) 
Committee the preparations for the 1984 International 
Conference on Population. It was heartening that India 
had been added to the list of contributors and had offered 
to be the host country for one of the working groups. In 
addition to the pledges from Australia, China, Colombia. 
Egypt and Peru, reported to the Council at its previous 
session, it had been indicated that further contributions 
were to be made by Bangladesh. the Federal Republic of 
Germany. Japan. Pakistan. Sri Lanka and "01ailand. The 
$300,000 target for 1982 had almost been reached. Apart 
from assessing past achievements, the Conference would 
provide an opportunity to give fm1her guidance for the 
next phase of the integration of population with develop­
ment; the broad ta:>ks to be undertaken were to 
strengthen the existing momentum. to initiate pro­
grammes in areas where no significant impact had yet 
been made and to identify problems for concerted action. 

53. The main emphasis in the collective effort of the 
1960s and 1 970s had been on basic data collection and 
family planning, in which impressive gains had been 
achieved. In the preparations for the 1984 Conference. 
the emerging population problems tor the forthcoming 
two decades and beyond must be recognized. Rapid 
urbanization and uncontrolled urban growth would call 
for fresh policies. The Declaration adopted by the 
International Conference on Population and the Urban 
Future, which had taken place at Rome in September 
IY80. had suggested a numher of measures to meet the 
challenge~ posed by rapid urbanization. ll1e problem of 
aging. which \\-as to be discussed at the forthcoming 
World Assembly on Aging. was a further subject of 
increasing concern to Governments. 
5-+. The !Y70s had been marked by a shift in the pattern 
of international migration. While the scale of migration 
from the developing countries to northern and western 
Europe had declined. the number of migrants to western 
Asia from the poorer areas of the developing countries 
had substantially increased. Further re:-,earch on the 
impact of migration on both the countries of immigration 
and the countries of emigration would he required. 
55. The experience of countries in which population 
programmes were integrated with development planning 
showed that programmes to improve the status of women, 
to provide access to health care, to improve contraceptive 
methods. to reduce infant mortality and to provide 
education combined to produce a dedine in fertility. 
While government action had proved essential for giving 
the necessary impetus to family planning programmes. 
effective delivery could only be maintained with active 

community participation, as the outstanding success of 
family planning in China and Indonesia had shown. 
56. The four workshops which had been planned in 
preparation for the International Conference on Popu­
lation would examine the achievements. problems and 
prospects in four major areas: fertility and the family: 
mortality and health: population distribution; and the 
interrelationships of population. resources. environment 
and development. The results of the workshops, together 
with the inputs provided by the organizations of the 
United Nations system-including the regional com­
missions-and by non-governmental organizations, 
would be taken into account in preparing the basic 
documents for the Conference. 
57. Mr. SRIVASTAVA (Secretary-General. Inter­
national Maritime Organization) said that IMO now 
comprised 122 members, over 75 per cent of which were 
developing countries of Africa, Asia and Latin America. 
The Convemion on the Inter-Governmental Maritime 
Consultative Organization had recently been amended 
and structural improvements made to reflect more fully 
the aspirations of the present membership, to set forth 
more specifically the responsibilities of IMO with respect 
to maritime safety and the prevention and control of 
marine pollution from ships and to make the work of its 
various bodies more effective. The Organization's name 
had been changed from ''Inter-Governmental Maritime 
Consultative Organization" to "International Maritime 
Organization". to retlect its role more accuratelv. Other 
amendments related to the status of the various "commit­
tees and emphasized the co-ordinating and directing role 
of the I.\10 Council as the principal governing organ 
during the periods between the biennial sessions of the 
Organization's Assembly. At its regular session in 
Nlwember J9RI. the Assemblv had considered those 
developments and taken a number of major decisions for 
the organization of the operations of lMO. 

5B. At its sc~<;ion in June 19R2, the IMO Council had 
reviewed the situation in the light of the Assembly's 
decisions and directives and the measures taken to 
implement them. It had been recognized that the changes 
made had been both necessary and desirable and that the 
re'iults had come up to expectations. Further amend­
ments to the Convention. adopted in 1977 and 1979. were 
expected to come int~) force shortly. The stze of the 
Cmmcil would then be increased further to make it more 
representative of the Organization''> greatly increased 
membership. 

59. A further major result of the amendments would be 
that the Committee on Technical Co-operation would be 
formally institutionalized in the Convention. making it 
the only technical co-operation body in the United 
Nation:.. ~ystem to have such constitutional status. 
60. In accordance with the directives of the lMO 
Council and Assembiy, the Organization·~ various inter­
governmental bodies had rcvi.:wed their work pro­
grammes and methods. with a view to concentrating on 
ta'>ks of urgent concern to all member States, and the 
agendas of all committee and sub-committee meetings 
were being scrutinized with a view to deleting non-urgent 



32nd 

items. The Organization's current policy was to promote 
the implementation of existing international standards 
and regulations. rather than to move into new areas. At 
its session in November 1981. the Assembly had adopted 
resolution A 500 (XII). laying down the Organization's 
objectives and priorities for the 1980s. 
61. The number of annual meetings convened by IMO 
had been reduced considerably. Further steps were being 
taken to control the i&sue of documentation and reduce its 
total volume. By such means. substantial economies had 
already been effected without any sacrifice of efficiency. 
With fewer meetings at headquarters. the technical 
experts of member States were able to devote more time 
to work in their own countries. 
62. The fir~t responsibility of IMO was to promote 
global co-operation among all maritime countries. with a 
view to the adoption of the highest practicable standards 
for maritime safety and navigation efficiency. There were 
over 70.000 ships of all kinds carrying the world's 
maritime trade. with a total of over 400 million gros& 
register tons. and IMO had developed standards. rules. 
regulations. codes of practice and recommendations to 
ensure the safety of ships. their cargoes and the persons 
on board. Bearing in mind that fisheries. tourism and 
shore amenities could be badly affected by pollution. it 
had also developed global standards for ship construction 
and operation to ensure that the oceans were not polluted 
by oily mixtures. hazardous chemical substances. ships· 
waste or sewage. 

hJ. IMO al-;o had the important responsibility of 
providing technical assistance to developing maritime 
countries to help them in building up their merchant 
marines. ports and dockyards. maritime -.afcty adminis­
tratmns. maritime legal systems and training facilities. 
The highest priority had been given to training. since 
shipping was u high-technology industry requiring 
specialist skills for its successful operation. IYIO hud 
organized a global network of technical advi&ory services. 
and the services of experts in various technical disciplines 
were available free of charge to all developing countries 
and were in great demand. The Organization had abo 
organized a large number of globaL rcgmnal and nattonal 
seminars and symposia for the benefit of developing 
countries. With its co-operation. a number of academic;; 
haLl been establi~hed at the national and regionalle\Cb in 
the developing world in recent years tl) provide training in 
navigation and marine engineering for young cadet-.. The 
developing countries themselve:-. had made consiuerable 
investment in bmlding:, am1 equipment for training 
purpo~es. L:NDP had provided substantial a&sistance 
through IMO to many of those institutions. Many 
developing countrie~ were neverthcles1-. faced wtth un 
acute shortage of maritime teacher:'> for their training 
in-.titution-;. Expatriate teacher;.. had been recruited m ; 
number of ca;.,e<;, but such recruitment was very expen­
;..ivc. even as a short-term measure. particularly ~ince It 
required <.carce foreign exchange and could obviously not 
provide an acceptable long-term solution. 

114. IMO had concluded that it \vas es;.,ential to organize 
special training facilitie-; for the benefit of the developing 

21 

countries in general. Such an institution would be beyond 
the capacity of any one developing country. and it had 
therefore been decided that it should be located in a place 
where advanced technical maritime infrastructure was 
already available. The IMO A~sembly had thus unani­
mously welcomed an offer from Sweden to make 
available generous facilities for the estabhshment of a 
World Maritime Univer~ity. The city of Malmo in Sweden 
had offered buildings and technical equipment free of 
charge. In addition. the Government of Sweden had 
made a firm offer of a cash grant to meet about one third 
of the total annual running co:,ts. ~UbJect to a ceiling of $1 
million per year and to the further condition that UNDP 
agreed to provide cash a:-.sistance of at least the ;.,arne 
amount. He was pleased to report that the initial reactions 
of the Administrator of UNDP at the session of the 
Governing Council had been encouraging. 

65. The IMO technical co-operation programme was 
very pragmatic and sought to meet the most urgent 
requirements of developing countrie~. However. even its 
modest programme was endangered by the financial 
problems facing UNDP. which was by far its most 
important source of finance. He therefore joined in the 
appeal for increased contributions to UNDP. at the same 
time expressing his deep gratitude to those States which 
had so generously assisted several lMO projects. 
Through its technical co-operation programme. IMO 
contributed to the comprehensive programme of eco­
nomic and social development pursued by the agenCies. 
bodie~ and programmes of the United Nation-. system 
under the co-ordinating direction of the Economic and 
Social Council. and it remained ready and willing to do all 
in its power to promote that global effort. 

66. Mr. KHANE (Executive Director. United Nations 
Industrial Development Organization). said that. 
although in the immediate aftermath of the summit 
meetings at Cancun and Versaille~ there had been some 
hope of a resumption in the dialogue between developed 
and developing countries. it now appeared that positions 
would remain mfkxiblc. Moreover. ne\v areas of di-,­
agreement and tensions\\ ere developing in the political. 
social and economic fields. which could become 
dangerom. Such a "ituation could be met if the inter­
national community as a whole rallied to the challenge of 
development through the stimulation of the demand for 
good~ and ~en ices in the third world and the organization 
of the supply to meet that demand. 

6 7. For the past eight years. UNIDO had tried to make 
its own modest contribution to third-\\orld uevelopment 
by organizing negotiation~ on a number of issue-, and 
undertakmg operatiOnal activities with a \ iew to ;..timu­
lating industrial production. Without an) mcrease in staff 
resources. UNIDO technical operation activities had 
risen from $25 million in 1974 to over $~8 million in 1981. 
a real increase of more than 50 per cent. However. those 
efforts were far from meeting the full need:; of the 
developing countries in that field: on the basis of current 
trends. thetr share of total world industrial production 
\\as not likely to be more than about 16 per cent in the 
year 2000. To achieve the level of at leaM 25 per cent. a~ 



22 Economic and 

erwi:-.aged by the Second General Conference of UNIDO 
and endorsed hv the General Assembly at its ~eventh 
spt:cial session,· would entail greater i~ternational co­
op•;ration. 

6R. In a number of cases. new machinery to promote 
closer international co-operation haJ been developed. 
1\vo example'> would !>how what could be done when the 
political will existeJ. First, the System of Consultations 
established in UN! DO had already proved its value as a 
forum in which representatives of indu:,try, government 
officials, entrepreneurs and members of the labour 
movement could examine future trends in industrial 
development. The Sy~tem also served to identify areas 
where, through negotiation, industrial progress could be 
directed in such a way as to benefit developing and 
industrialized countries alike. Secondly, machinery had 
ht>~n developed in the vital sphere of industrial tech­
nology, such as the Industrial and Technological 
Information Bank, which, though still a modest 
operation, had clearly indicated its capacity to assist 
developing countries in the choice of technology. 

69. It was generally recognized, however. that 
increased financial flows would be required if the 
industrialization of developing countries was to proceed 
at a faster rate. The current international framework did 
not appear adequate to stimulate such flows, and any 
initiatives in that field seemed to meet with opposition. 
UNIDO itself had proposed the establishment of an 
in1ernational hank for industrial development. That 
proposal had heen a central issue at the Third General 
Conference of UNIDO and was still the subject of debate. 
In his opinion. at a time when new initiatives were clearly 
necessary. a detailed examination of such a proposal 
would he definitely advantageous. 
70. Another area in which there was clear scope for 
progress was industrial co-operation among developing 
countries. Over the past two decades, a number of 
developing countries, through their own efforts and with 
the assistance of international organizations, had 
de·veloped sound industrial bases. Their success was 
n ident in the competitiveness of their manufactures and 
in their development of indigenous industrial technology. 
The potential for co-operation between those countries 
and those at an earlier stage of industrial development 
w.:ts clear, and UN IDO was striving to translate it into 
concrete programmes and initiatives. 
71 Nevertheless. to achieve the goals of the Lima 
Declaration and Plan of Action on Industrial Develop­
ment and Co-operation would require the whole··hearted 
participation of the entire international community. The 
World Economic Survey 1981-1982 rightly drew attention 
to the amount of financial assistance provided in 
developed countries in order to keep in operation 
increasingly uncompetitive industries and activities. The 
studies of UNIDO itself indicated that ~upport for ailing 
industries was continuing, often with new protective 
mechanisms. That Wa!> one of the difficulties confronting 
negotiations in the industrial sphere, and so long as such 
short-sighted and negative policies prevailed. genuine 
international co-operation would not be possible. A 

1982 

reappraisal of attitudes wa~ needed. in order to reaffirm 
the commitment of the international community to a new 
international economic order. 
72. With regard to the important issue nf the revital­
ization of the Economic and Social Council, he renewed 
hi-; own pledge of full support. as well as that of UNIDO. 
73. In conclus1on. he took great pleasure in informing 
the Council that, slightly more than three years after its 
adoption, more than 80 countries had r.1tified the new 
Con~titution of UNIDO. He hoped that the launching of 
the Organization a'> a specialized agency of the United 
Nations would take place very soon. 
74. Mr. DEMAS (Committee for Development Plan­
ning) said that the Committee for Development 
Planning shared the Secretarv-Gcneral's concern at the 
continuing deterioration in the world economy and the 
serious erosion of international economic co-operation, 
and it fullv agreed that concerted international action was 
nece!'.sary- for a broad-based recovery. The interdepend­
ence in the world economy was such that only inter­
national co-operation could restore growth with price 
stability. In periods of prosperity, economic inter­
dependence was a source of strength, but in the present 
recession it re-;ulted in the export of inflation and the 
transmission of contraction and unemployment from the 
developed to the developing countries. One of the main 
reasons was the weakening demand for primary products., 
but an increasing number of developing countries were 
also exporters of manufactures. and they suffered not 
only from the contraction of demand in industrialized 
countries but from a variety of protectionist measures. 
The practice of tying aid was also becoming more 
onerous. 
75. The international monetarv and financial system 
\vas inadequate to meet the need~'> of global recove-ry. In 
the area of payments imbalances, demand restriction was 
still regarded as the main remedy, even though it was 
recognized as having a deflationary influence on the world 
economy. With regard to exchange rates, several 
countries had reduced domestic inflation by allowing their 
currency to appreciate, at the cost of intensifying 
inflationary pressures in other countries. With respect to 
finance and debt, monetary authorities in the larger 
developed market economies remained unresponsive to 
the problem of high interest rates, \Vhich had made debt 
servicing a consuming preoccupation in all deficit 
countries. threatened the stability of the entire banking 
system and brought investment projects to a halt 
evervwhere. In the opinion of the Committee, the present 
high. rates of interest were a serious obstacle to inter­
national recovery. 
7fJ. The Committee saw in the existing trends a vicious 
circle of international contraction, entailing great suffer­
ing in many of the poore:-.t developing countries and the 
risk of widespread political instability and international 
tension. It noted with concern the rising trend in military 
expenditures and the view expressed in some quarters 
that such spending wouid help to ~timulate economic 
recovery. In such circumstances, rational economic 
management (including development planning) was very 



33rd meeting- 9 July 1982 2.~ 

d ifficult. and 1 he ohjcctives of the I nte rn<ttional 
Deve lopm~nt ' t rateg~ for the Third mtcd . at ions 
Deveh)pmcnt Decade ~emed to be ill\alidated from the 
s tart . 

77. Again-.t tha t 'lunhrc background. the Committe.:. 
th rough the Council. rcmmmended that all Member 
States should f! l\ c urgcnt cun.,ideration to a programme 
for intcrnational TI.!CIWCt:. The current political climate 
might he un fa , o urahle to new propo!>al!> for multilateral 
action. hut all nation~ had a stake in the rccovav of thc 
world cconom). A t it-; eighteen th ses..o;ion . the Committee 
had not attempted to draw up ::.uch a programme it~elf. 
Such a ta-,k mu<.t he ba!-eu on the initi:.Jtive and !>Uppo rt of 
Government'>. It wi-,hed. howevl.'r. to indicate !>Ome of 
rhe mea!-urcl-o it con!>tdered e en1ial and hoped that the 
Council would he in a po~i tion to di~cu!>s and develop its 
recommendation~ . 

7H. It wa~ necc~~arv llrst to n:call Article 56 of the 
Charter of the Uni t~d Nations. in which all Members 
pledged thcmse lvcs to take .JOint and separate action for 
the ach ievement o f condition-; of ~tahilitv and wdl-being. 
including full e mp loyment. Each cou-ntry. of cours~. 
would choose it'> own policies. but it should also take into 
account the ir impact on the world economv. The 
dete rio ratio n in the in ternational economic ·ituation had 
in part been due to policies pursued in countries with a 
prepo nderant we tght in the world economv. as thev had 
sought to '>Oivc 1 heir problem~ on a nationai basis th;ough 
drast ic demand rc'>trict ion and pro tectkmi m . The 
Com mittee urged the im mediate consideration M the 
lowering of the high interest rates in the dcvcll>pcd 
market economic . T here should be greater emphasis on 
anti-inflationar~ policies that would check the cost price 
spira l with leo;'> di!.ruption of the world econo my. The 
C o mmittee also urged tht: examinat1on of appropriate 
measure · 10 rev ive international trade. 

79. With regard to the s tep that Memher tates could 
ta ke through inte rnational co-operation. the Committee 

s tressed the importance o f an imag.inatl\ e u.;..: o f multi­
latl.'ral financial in\litutinn~. urgim.! action in three broad 
a rt:as. First. it called for the im~1ediate restoration1>f the 
resourcc~ of IDA Ill pre' inu~l ~ <tg.n:cd lc'd~ and it~ 
subsequent enlargement. a 'uthtanti,tl inetea~c in the 
rco;ource!> of the multilate ral de,dopment in <.lltuti,ln,. 
particular!~ the World Bank. and the creatton of an 
energ)- faci lit~ with a capital financed h) \Oiuntary 
contribution'. Scc\llld. 11 <.ought the Immediate r~::-;ump­
tJo n of SDR creation and tho: enlar~tcment 1>f the 
resources a\ ailablc to IM F. In addi t•o n . the Fund ~hould 
ma\...c a grcmcr proportion of it., re<;ource~ a\ a1 lahle to 
dl.'veloping wuntrie~ on easier condittnn~ and should 
involve member States in the ~ctti ng of the term~ of klan~. 
ln protracted t.it~putcs. pwcedures could he adopted by 
which a thiru party or partie~ might a'>~i~ t in n:;Khing 
agreement. Third. there :.hould he a 'i~nitican t im:reasc in 
eoncessiona l development a!>-,istance .including f1lOU aid . 
!{O. Action in those areas would he in the intcrc'>l of a ll 
countrie~. nch and pO\lr. It would greatly incrt'a~c the 
flow of inte rna tional finance. and would im·oh e onh a 
relative lY modest burden on government budget\. in 
indu-;tri<~ lil..ed cou 1 1trie~a burden that wa negligible 
when set against the expenditure for arm~ prod~Jction , 
which. in competing ftlr skilled labour and o ther 
resources that were scarce even during a recc~ion . was 
!-Urely more innatio nary than any oth;r f1lrm o f govl' rn­
metll ~pending. 
81. In conclu.,ion . he said that. as requested hy the 
CounciL the Committee had examined the available 
information rela ting to ~1x countric~ and hat.J conclut.Jed 
that Djibouti. Equatorial Guinea . Sao Tome and 
Principe. Sierra Leo ne and T ogo met the nccc~-,ary 
criteria for inclusion in the list of the least de' eloped 
countries. 

The m eeting rose at 5.30 p.m. 




